CITY OF MYRTLE POINT CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Regular Meeting
Monday, June 3, 2024 – 6:30 p.m.,
Flora M Laird Memorial Library Meeting Room
435 5th Street, Myrtle Point

Council Members

Present:

Samantha Clayburn, Mayor Ivan Hawker, City Councilor Mike Wood, City Councilor Amy Ligons, City Councilor Berea Gibbons, City Councilor

Absent:

Gary Sullivan, City Councilor

Staff and Others

Scott Robinson, Chief of Police Scott Nay, City Manager Kathy Lewis* Wayne Ramsey, Public Works Ginny Groce, Accountant Dan Kleis

Tasha Renard, Fire/Ambulance Battalion Chief

(* indicates remote attendance)

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Clayburn called the City Council meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. and led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Mayor Clayburn asked the City Council members to state their names for the roll.

CONSENT ITEMS

A. Mayor Clayburn announced the Consent Items – Minutes of the May 6, 2024 Regular Meeting. Councilor Wood moved to accept the minutes as presented. Councilor Gibbons seconded the motion. Mayor Clayburn asked for any discussion or corrections, and hearing none motion carried unanimously.

ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Public Hearing- Sewer Consumption Rate Increase - FY 2024-25 Budget

Mayor Clayburn announced the Sewer Consumption Rate Increase and asked Manager Nay to give a staff report. Manager Nay explained that during our 2024-25 Budget Committee deliberations there was extensive discussion regarding the sewer fund and the potential need to increase the Sewer Consumption Rates for the 2024-25 Budget. Manager Nay explained that the Reserves and Contingencies in the sewer fund have been depleted and operation costs have increased due to many factors including high inflation resulting in higher than anticipated materials and personnel costs, and increasing State and Federal DEQ Permit requirements to operate the sewer plant efficiently and stay in compliance. Manager Nay also explained that our current sewer service charges are not sufficient to meet the demand for the increased operation costs and we lack operating contingency funds available to cover these deficiencies. Therefore, in the development of the 2024-25

budget process and calculations, it became quite clear that even with appropriate adjustments to expenses, we were still going to have a shortfall of approximately \$51,000 in revenues to cover operational costs which will keep the City from its ability to balance the 2024-25 Sewer Fund. Manager Nay indicated that during the Budget Committee Meeting deliberations it was decided to propose a 15% increase in the sewer consumption rates only for all tiers 1-7 with no changes to the Base Rates. Manager Nay explained that this amount of increase to the rates will be adequate to bring revenues in line with expenses to cover the \$51,000 shortfall in the sewer fund and to balance the budget for FY 2024-25. Manager Nay also stated that the Budget Committee approved the revenue adjustment produced by the rate increases through the Committee's approval of the 2024-25 Budget during the May 13th Budget Committee meeting. Manager Nay also stated that the adjustments are included in the 2024-25 approved Budget in the Sewer Fund Revenue Category, under the line titled Sewer Service Charges. Manager Nay explained that the resolution 2024-03 proposes to increase only the Sewer Rate Consumption Charges for all metered accounts and referred the council members to the second page of his staff report which identifies and gives examples of what the effect of the proposed increases would look like within the various consumption blocks (tiers). Councilor Gibbons asked why in the examples given of the effect of the rate increases between Tier 6 and Tier 7 was Tier 6 higher than the example given for Tier 7. There was some discussion around the examples given in the staffing report with Manger Nay indicating that it appears there was a typo error on Tier 6 effects as it would be lower than Tier 7. Councilor Gibbons also asked about how the rates for other Cities in our area compare to this proposal. Manager Nay stated that Coquille was comparable to these rates and that they were considering an increase as well in their 2024-25 Budget and Powers was also looking at potential increases. Manager Nay indicated the increased rates, if approved, would go into effect July 1, 2024. Manager Nay recommended approval of the rate increases in order to operate the sewer system. Mayor Clayburn closed the regular meeting at 6:40 p.m. and opened a Public Hearing regarding the proposed Sewer Consumption Rate increases. Mayor Clayburn called for any public comment. Kathy Lewis stated she had none as she was on the Budget Committee. Dan Kleis also commented that he had no comments. Hearing no other public comments, Mayor Clayburn closed the public hearing at 6:41 p.m.

B. Resolution 2024-03- Establishing Water and Sewer Rates

Mayor Clayburn announced Resolution 2024-03 Establishing Water and Sewer Rates. Councilor Wood moved to approve Resolution 2024-03 Establishing Water and Sewer Service Rates. Councilor Hawker seconded the motion. Mayor Clayburn called for discussion. Mayor Clayburn commented to confirm that most people fall into the Tier 1 and Tier 2 consumption levels. Manager Nay confirmed that most water/sewer users are in Tier 1 or Tier 2 levels. Councilor Hawker asked for confirmation that the \$51,000 from increased revenues covers operation expenses in sewer fund budget. Manager Nay confirmed that those revenues would cover expenses to balance the sewer fund for FY 2024-25 budget. No other comments were heard and Mayor Clayburn called for a vote. The motion carried unanimously.

C. Public Hearing – Proposed Uses of State Shared Revenue

Mayor Clayburn announced the Proposed Uses of State Shared Revenue and asked Manager Nay to give a staff report. Manager Nay read the staff report which stated that State Shared Revenue is a vital part of the city's annual revenue in the General Fund. The report also identified that all of the \$27,000 of estimated revenue from State Shared Revenue had been included as operating revenue in the General Fund in the Approved Budget. He also recommended that the City Council approve receiving State Shared Revenue in Fiscal Year 2024-25. Mayor Clayburn closed the regular meeting at 6:43 p.m.

and opened a Public Hearing on the Proposed Uses of State Shared Revenue. Mayor Clayburn called for public comment and, hearing none, closed the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m. and reopened the Regular Meeting.

D. Resolution 2024-04 – Declaring the City's Election to Receive State Revenues Mayor Clayburn announced Resolution 2024-04 Declaring the City's Election to Receive State Revenues. Councilor Hawker moved to approve Resolution 2024-04 Declaring the City's Election to Receive State Revenues. Councilor Ligons seconded the motion. Mayor Clayburn called for discussion and, hearing none, called for a vote. The motion carried unanimously.

E. Public Hearing – 2024-25 Approved Budget

Mayor Clayburn announced 2024-25 Approved Budget. Manager Nay read the staff report which discussed that per state budget law the governing body must enact a resolution or ordinance adopting the budget. He explained that appropriations provide local government with the legal spending authority throughout the fiscal year. He also explained the various categories for appropriations as outlined in Resolution 2024-05. Manager Nay also explained that the appropriations will not equal the total budgeted amount as indicated in resolution 2024-05 because there are monies budgeted that are titled unappropriated and not designated for specific purposes. Manager Nay recommended adopting the budget. Mayor Clayburn closed the Regular Meeting at 6:49 p.m. and opened a Public Hearing on the 2024-25 Approved Budget. Mayor Clayburn called for public comment, and hearing none, closed the Public Hearing at 6:50 p.m. and reopened the Regular Meeting.

F. Resolution 2024-05 – Adopting the Budget and Making Appropriations for the 2024-25 Fiscal Year

Mayor Clayburn announced Resolution 2024-05 Adopting the Budget and Making Appropriations for the 2024-25 Fiscal Year. Councilor Hawker moved to approve Resolution 2024-05 Adopting the Approved Budget and Making Appropriations for the 2024-25 Fiscal Year. Councilor Wood seconded the motion. Mayor Clayburn called for discussion. Councilor Gibbons asked if the revenues from the new Health District Tax Levy that just passed were included in the budget? Tasha Renard, Battalion Chief, confirmed that, yes, they were included in the budget. Councilor Gibbons then asked what the new revenue amounts would be and Ginny Groce, accountant, indicated that \$120,000 was included in the budget for this line item. There was additional comments and discussion regarding the Health District Tax Levy monies and how it would affect the Ambulance Department moving forward. Mayor Clayburn called for a vote and the motion carried unanimously.

G. Resolution 2024-06 – Allocating, Categorizing and Levying Ad Valorem Taxes
Mayor Clayburn announced Resolution 2024-06 Allocating, Categorizing and Levying Ad
Valorem Taxes and called on the City Manager for background. Manager Nay read the staff
report which explained that the resolution is what gives the city the authority to tax property
in order to bring revenue in to the General Fund. Property taxes make up the bulk of the
revenue in the General Fund. The tax rate has been and continues to be \$7.995/\$1,000
assessed value. Councilor Wood moved to approve Resolution 2024-06 Allocating,
Categorizing and Levying Ad Valorem Taxes on Taxable Property within the Corporate
Limits of the City of Myrtle Point for the 2024-25 Fiscal Year. Councilor Ligons seconded
the motion. Councilor Hawker asked if tax rate has gone up or down from last year? Mayor
Clayburn and Manager Nay stated that it is the same and has been the same rate for a long
time. Manager Nay also stated that the rate is the maximum tax rate that can be imposed
and that the City of Myrtle Point has no control on setting the rate. Mayor Clayburn called for
a vote. The motion carried unanimously.

H. Resolution 2024-07 - Adopting a Revised Pay Matrix for City Employees

Mayor Clayburn announced Resolution 2024-07 Adopting a Revised Pay Matrix for City Employees. Manager Nay explained that all the full-time employees are paid according to the Pay Matrix. The Pay Matrix included with the resolution adds a 4% COLA as had been discussed during the budgeting process and will take effect July 1, 2024. Councilor Gibbons moved to approve Resolution 2024-07 Adopting a Revised Pay Matrix for City Employees. Councilor Hawker seconded the motion which carried unanimously.

I. Electing a new City Council President

Mayor Clayburn announced Electing a new City Council President. She explained that Council President Michael Hogan had resigned from the City Council during the May 6, 2024 Council Meeting. Therefore, the council needs to elect a new President. Mayor Clayburn asked the council if there were any volunteers or nominations for Council President. Councilor Wood stated that he would volunteer if there were no nominations. Mayor Clayburn asked if there were any nominations? Some discussion followed as to possible nominations. Following discussion Councilor Wood nominated Councilor Hawker for Council President. Mayor Clayburn called for a vote. The council voted unanimously in favor for Councilor Hawker as Council President.

J. Disbursement of Funds – Council Activities

Mayor Clayburn announced the Disbursement of Funds. Mayor Clayburn stated that at the end of each fiscal year the council distributes the remaining funds in Council Activities line item. She indicated that there is \$630 left in the fund as they have previously distributed \$250 to Myrtle Point Equestrian Team and \$120 to Myrtle Point High School 2023-24 Yearbook Business Ad. Manager Nay stated that there is one request outstanding for funds for the Myrtle Point High School Fall and Winter Sports Program Ad for Fall/Winter of 2024-25. He indicated that the council normally does the Quarter Page Ad for \$120. There was discussion about needs within the city and several ideas were discussed for possible uses of the funds. Following discussion, Councilor Hawker moved to disburse funds from the Council Activities line of the General Fund, City Council division to the following entities or for the following uses:

\$360.00 to the Fall and Winter Sports Program Ad \$270.00 for window painting prize money

Councilor Gibbons seconded the motion which carried unanimously

PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Mayor Clayburn called for petitions from the audience. Kathy Lewis suggested adding a 4th place cash award this year for the window painting prize money. Mayor Clayburn indicated the council would consider this suggestion as they decide how to distribute the prize money. There were no other petitions from the audience.

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS

- A. Myrtle Point Public Library Foundation Meeting June 4, 2024, 5:00 p.m.
- B. Myrtle Point High School Graduation- June 8, 2024, 2:00 p.m.
- C. City of Myrtle Point City Town Wide Garage Sale July 13, 2024, 9:00 a.m.-4:00 p.m.

INFORMATION ITEMS

- A. Myrtle Point Public Library Foundation Meeting Agenda June 4, 2024
- B. Myrtle Point Public Library Foundation Meeting Minutes May 7, 2024

OTHER COMMUNICATIONS

- a. Staff Reports:
 - 1. Manager Nay reported on the following:
 - a. Dukes Precision I&I Microdetection Study Update –With the rainfall events in late April and early May we were able to get our minimum 1" rainfall amounts needed for the study. Therefore, this phase of the study has been completed and Dukes will be scheduling a date on Thursday June 6 and Friday June 7 to be in Myrtle Point to retrieve the detection units from the manholes. They will be compiling data and present us with a report in 4-6 weeks.
 - b. City Council Vacancy Notice With councilor Michael Hogans resignation from City Council in May we now have a vacant City Council position. Per City Charter a Public notice of City Council Vacancy will be published in the Myrtle Point Herald on Wednesday June 5, 2024. Interested parties are to submit letters of interest to City Hall by Wednesday, June 19, 2024. Candidates will be interviewed at the regular City Council meeting on Monday, July 1, 2024. He did note that this position is one whose term does expire December 31, 2024 and so the position will be available for filing for the November 5,2024 election.
 - c. Elections Information He reminded those Council Members/Mayor whose terms expire on 12/31/2024 that the filing period for election/re-election starts on June 5, 2024 and ends on August 27, 2024. The general election is on November 5, 2024. He will have candidate packets for filing for election available at City Hall on June 5, 2024. He also indicated that the following council members terms expire on 12/31/24: Mayor Clayburn, Mike Wood, Gary Sullivan, and the vacant position now available due to Councilor Hogan's resignation. Councilor Hawker commented that he was under the understanding that the person who resigns a council position is responsible to find a person to fill that position. Manager Nay and Mayor Clayburn both commented that while we encourage resigning council members to find their replacement, there is nothing in the Charter that makes them responsible to do that. The Council was also reminded that part of the process for filing is to get a minimum 20 registered and validated signatures on a petition and those who sign the petition must also reside within Myrtle Point City Limits. The petition for filing and signatures must be turned in and approved by August 27, 2024 or cannot get on the ballot.
 - d. USDA (United States Department of Agriculture) Compliance Review and Security Inspection- The City has a routine USDA Rural Development Civil Rights Compliance Review and Security Inspection scheduled for June 29, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. This is related to the servicing of our loan for the Sewer Plant through the USDA. The inspector will be reviewing various Civil Rights Compliance documentation, as well as taking a tour of City Hall, Sewer Plant, and possibly the pump stations.
 - e. Draft "Feeding of Wild Animals" ordinance update He made the changes to the draft ordinance as discussed at May 6, 2024 City Council meeting. The draft has been sent to City Attorney, for legal review and approval. He did get the final approval from the City Attorney "today" June 3, 2024, but it was too late to get in the City Managers Staff Report for this meeting. He will have the final ordinance prepared for City Council Review and adoption at the July 1, 2024 City Council meeting. He will also put out a "Public Hearing" notice in the Myrtle Point Herald.
 - 2. Police Chief Robinson reported on the following:

Personnel – Officer Pierce is on his Annual Military Training in Alaska, May 27- June 14. Officer Gilbert is currently on Paternity Leave for a couple of months for the birth of his new son.

Training and Activities -

- Officer Angove stopped a stolen vehicle in Myrtle Point a couple of weeks ago. When Officer Angove attempted to approach the vehicle, the driver attempted to injure Officer Angove by ramming into Officer Angove's vehicle and then driving away. Officer Angove was not injured and pursued the stolen vehicle to Powers where pursuit ended as became too dangerous to continue. The suspect was later identified. Officer Angove's vehicle was damaged and is currently in the body shop in Myrtle Point awaiting repairs.
- Four officers participated in the "Pin blue Line" police team challenge bowling pin charity shootout on May 18[,] 2024. Myrtle Point Police Department performed very well.
- Jigsaw Productions documentary In 2018 there was a case in Myrtle Point that one of our officers was involved with. Very disturbing and grotesque case involving animal sex abuse. The suspect was arrested, convicted, and sentenced to 24 years in prison. A production company, Jigsaw Productions, is doing a documentary on this case and others like it for A &E and has contacted Chief Robinson about doing an interview related to this case. Chief Robinson is reluctant to do the interview, but after discussion with City Manager Nay they decided to go ahead and do the interview to be able to at least control the narrative. Councilor Hawker asked if Chief Robinson had an idea as to the actual intent of Jigsaw Productions doing this documentary? Chief Robinson answered that he believed that they are trying to expose that this behavior/culture is present in our society. Chief Robinson indicated that he did not believe they were trying to glorify this behavior. He indicated that he told the production company that he was going to stick to the script in the interview as far as what the police report says and what was recorded and will only answers questions as to what are the facts in the case and not opinion.
- Officer Investigations and Arrests Had a stabbing incident at skate park which was initially a road rage incident gone sideways and a suspect has been identified and has fled the State. The report and case will be sent to Coos County DA.
- Body Cameras- The Police Department is at the end of their 5- year contract with Motorola. They are going to make a switch to a different vendor this summer. The Myrtle Point Rotary Club has approached the Police Department about continuing the Rotary Clubs support for expenses related to the Body Cameras.
- 3. Accountant Groce reported on the following:

2024/2025 Budget Prep – The Approved Budget 2024/2025 has been presented today for adoption by City Council. The adopted Budget for 2024-2025 will be completed and ready for July 1, 2024 Council Meeting.

2023-2024 Financial Audit – The Audit document for 2023-2024 is expected this week from the auditors.

Minimum Wage – Oregon rural minimum wage will increase from \$13.20/hr. to \$13.70/hr. on July 1, 2024. The only positions effected by this are the volunteer firefighters. However, they also receive a stipe-end.

Workers Comp – The annual Workers Comp audit with SAIF will be onsite on June 5, 2024. This should be the last annual on-site audit. We are in year 3 of a 3-year program with SAIF for them performing on-site audits when you first start using them.

4. Public Works Leadman Ramsey reported on the following:

Pothole Patching – Just finished another round of patching potholes on Kincheloe St., View St. and Maple St. Will be focusing patching on 7th Street and others. We Will be continuing this work as we move into 2024-2025 Budget Year.

Harris St. Project Update – This project has been completed. Public Works crews will be going through and redoing some driveway approaches and alleyway. Mayor Clayburn commented that the Crosswalk lines had not been painted at the stop sign at 4th and Harris St. She asked if Public Works could paint the white crosswalk there? Leadman

Ramsey indicated that we were aware of that being missed and that Public Works would schedule the crosswalk to be painted at the end of June so that it is there before the start of the Coos County Fair, at the end of July.

North Bend Medical Center sidewalks – Work is continuing on the replacement of sections of the North Bend Medical Center sidewalks. We are also replacing a section of sidewalk near Generations Tax and Wealth Management on Corner of Spruce Street and 5th Street.

Brush Pickup – Brush pickup is over till after Coos County Fair. If your constituents want to know about picking up brush, they can contact City Hall and make an arrangement with Public Works.

Bicycle Repair Station- The Logging Museum purchased a bicycle repair station and Public Works crew has installed the station at the Logging Museum property.

Sewer Plant Wash Out update – Leadman Ramsey had to send out a Public Notice of a wash out event at the Sewer Plant that happened on Sunday, June 2, during the 1" of rainfall event we had. He discussed the process we are using with adding new chemical per DEQ requirements, to bring down our phosphorous levels, as required. It appears that we had approximately 3 DEQ violations pertaining to our permit from this washout. We have some questions for DEQ as to this process and our permit. We are trying to set up a phone call with DEQ to discuss our questions and options available. Councilor Hawker asked if there was a consultant who is knowledgeable on this that the City could contact to assist us. Leadman Ramsey indicated that he has a contact that he is going to connect with to discuss our situation.

Water Leaks Season – This is the time of year for City water line leaks to appear. We have had three to repair so far this season.

Burn Season- Wanted to remind everyone that Burn Season is almost upon us. **DEI Training –** Reminded the City Council that they passed a resolution a couple of years ago requiring DEI training. This training is coming up for various employees including City Council Members to complete.

Dog Park update – Mayor Clayburn asked about update on the dog park at Rotary Park? Leadman Ramsey indicated he needs some funds to complete it. He said he first needs to relocate the old swing set to another location near the new equipment by jungle gym. He indicated that he needs to know what kind of ground covering material is to be used for the base of the park and then what kind, size and location of fencing is wanted. He did indicate that more money has been spent on doggy pick up stations and supplies for Rotary Park since the stations have been put in. Mayor Clayburn suggested that we contact the Myrtle Point Rotary Club, since it is named Rotary Park, to discuss some financial support from them for putting in the dog park. She did indicate to Leadman Ramsey to maybe begin with the fencing issue utilizing the concrete wall of the tennis courts as back wall and running fencing from that. Other details of the park will be decided and communicated to Leadman Ramsey.

Misc. – Councilor Hawker asked a question to Leadman Ramsey and Chief Robinson regarding outside lighting behind City Hall at rear entrance to Police Department. Councilor Hawker commented that he had received a citizen question regarding why no outside lighting to rear entrance to Police Department or no camera? There was discussion that a motion detector dusk to dawn light was located outside the rear entrance and that it was working when last checked a couple of nights prior. There was some discussion also around getting a camera out in that area. It has been discussed previously, but nothing was done. The cardboard on the rear door window was also discussed and while it is maybe not be the best option, it does provide security and safety from people outside looking into the Police Department through the door. Leadman Ramsey also reported on a fully loaded semi-truck that has been going all the way up to top of Spruce Street and parking where the driver lives each day. This is

- damaging to Spruce St. roadway. Public Works has made contact with the owner/driver of the truck and the owner/driver has agreed to park the loaded truck down at bottom of Spruce Street from now on. Councilor Gibbons asked about who was doing the patching up on Spruce St. Leadman Ramsey indicated that we contracted that out to Coast Paving to do.
- 5. Fire Chief Burris was not in attendance, but he did submit a Staff Report that was included in the Councilors meeting packets. Mayor Clayburn gave a brief summary of Chief Burris's staff report as follows: Chief Burris is very happy with the passing of the Myrtle Point Health District operating levy. He is also gearing up for the Wildland Fire Season and the Myrtle Point Ambulance assisted with the recent jet boat races.

Council Concerns and Comments

- 1. Councilor Wood asked about a progress update on getting City Ordinances available online? Manager Nay commented he had recently received notice that the codification of the ordinances process has just been completed by the company who was contracted to do so. They will be mailing out the hard copy very soon and we should also receive a digital copy that we can then put on the City's website for people to access the ordinances.
- 2. Councilor Ligons shared a concern she had about the vacant lot on Harris Street, where the house caught fire and burned down. Her concern is that the grass is super overgrown and with the wildfire season coming up what are going to do about that? There was some discussion surrounding how to deal with this situation and it was decided that the City Public Works Department will mow the grass and make the lot safe from potential fire.
- 3. Mayor Clayburn commented on the Chamber of Commerce needing assistance for Harvest Festival. She indicated that the Chamber of Commerce membership meetings are not well attended and there is only 3-4 active members who are working on the planning of Harvest Festival. The Chamber is looking for volunteer assistance in manpower, from the city, to help with the various events. She also commented on attending the Memorial Day ceremony and encouraged others to attend next year.

ADJOURNMENT

Having no further business for the City of Myrtle Point, Mayor Clayburn adjourned the Regular Meeting at 8:06 p.m.

07/01/2024

Samantha Clayburn, Mayor
City of Myrtle Point